
Democratic Services
White Cliffs Business Park
Dover
Kent  CT16 3PJ

Telephone: (01304) 821199
Fax: (01304) 872452
DX: 6312
Minicom: (01304) 820115
Website: www.dover.gov.uk
e-mail: democraticservices

@dover.gov.uk

23 November 2015

Dear Councillor

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a meeting of the REGULATORY COMMITTEE will be 
held in the Council Chamber at these Offices on Tuesday 1 December 2015 at 10.00 am 
when the following business will be transacted. 

Members of the public who require further information are asked to contact Jemma Duffield 
on (01304) 872305 or by e-mail at jemmaduffield@dover.gov.uk.

Yours sincerely

Chief Executive 

Regulatory Committee Membership:

B W Butcher (Chairman)
P S Le Chevalier
B Gardner
S J Jones
S C Manion

AGENDA

1   APOLOGIES  

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2   APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  

To note appointment of Substitute Members. 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Page 4)

To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be 
transacted on the agenda.  



4   MINUTES  (Pages 5 - 8)

To confirm the attached Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 15 July 
and 18 August 2015. 

PROCEDURE FOR HEARING  (Pages 9 - 12)

The procedures for the Hearing are attached.

5   LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 - 
APPLICATION TO LICENCE A VEHICLE OUTSIDE OF POLICY GUIDELINES  
(Pages 13 - 25)

To consider the attached report of the Licensing Team Leader. 

6   LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982 - 
APPLICATION FOR STREET TRADING CONSENT, DEAL SEAFRONT  (Pages 
26 - 88)

To consider the attached report of the Licensing Team Leader. 

7   HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 - SECTION 115E - BLOODY MARY'S, 160-162 HIGH 
STREET, DEAL  (Pages 89 - 102)

To consider the attached report of the Licensing Team Leader. 

8   HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 - SECTION 115E - ROUTE 1 (DEAL) LTD, BEACH 
STREET, DEAL  (Pages 103 - 124)

To consider the attached report of the Licensing Team Leader. 

9   HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 - SECTION 115E - THE CLARENDON HOTEL, 51-53 
BEACH STREET, DEAL  (Pages 125 - 141)

To consider the attached report of the Licensing Team Leader. 

10   HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 - SECTION 115E - THE DUCHESS, 1 BENCH STREET, 
DOVER  (Pages 142 - 154)

To consider the attached report of the Licensing Team Leader. 

11   HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 - SECTION 115E - THE SEAGULL, 33 HIGH STREET, 
DEAL  (Pages 155 - 167)

To consider the attached report of the Licensing Team Leader. 

12   FEES AND CHARGES 2016/17  (Pages 168 - 185)

To consider the attached report of the Head of Regulatory Services. 

13   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  (Page 186)

The recommendation is attached.



MATTERS WHICH THE MANAGEMENT TEAM SUGGESTS SHOULD BE 
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE AS THE REPORT CONTAINS EXEMPT 
INFORMATION AS DEFINED WITHIN PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS INDICATED AND IN RESPECT OF WHICH 
THE PROPER OFFICER CONSIDERS THAT THE PUBLIC INTEREST IN 
MAINTAINING THE EXEMPTION OUTWEIGHS THE PUBLIC INTEREST IN 
DISCLOSING THE INFORMATION 

14   LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 - JOINT 
DRIVER'S LICENCE  (Pages 187 - 192)

To consider the attached report of the Licensing Team Leader. 

Access to Meetings and Information

 Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its 
Committees and Sub-Committees.  You may remain present throughout them except 
during the consideration of exempt or confidential information.

 All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on 
the front page of the agenda.  There is disabled access via the Council Chamber 
entrance and a disabled toilet is available in the foyer.  In addition, there is a PA 
system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber.

 Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting.  
Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of 
charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from 
our website www.dover.gov.uk.  Minutes will be published on our website as soon as 
practicably possible after each meeting.  All agenda papers and minutes are 
available for public inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.  

 If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right 
to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Jemma Duffield, 
Democratic Support Officer, telephone: (01304) 872305 or email: 
jemmaduffield@dover.gov.uk for details.

Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request.



Declarations of Interest

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)

Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must 

disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance 

that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The 

Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any 

matter in which they have declared a DPI and must not participate in any discussion of, or 

vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to 

do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a 

DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any 

dispensations, withdraw from the meeting.

Other Significant Interest (OSI)

Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the 

nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the 

commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and 

must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been 

granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are 

permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving 

evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the 

same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote 

taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's 

procedure rules.

Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI)

Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for 

transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter 

under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at 

the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration.

Note to the Code: 

Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside 

bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person 

involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would 

affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her 

financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a 

Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member, 

relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in 

some cases a DPI.



Minutes of the meeting of the REGULATORY COMMITTEE held at the Council 
Offices, Whitfield on Wednesday, 15 July 2015 at 2.01 pm.

Present:

Chairman: Councillor  P S Le Chevalier (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair)

Councillors: B Gardner
S J Jones

Officers: Head of Legal Services
Licensing Team Leader
Democratic Support Officer
Trainee Solicitor

1 APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors B W Butcher, S J Jones and 
S C Manion.

2 APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 

It was noted that, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4, Councillor D P 
Murphy was appointed as substitute for Councillor S C Manion.

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest made by Members.

4 MINUTES 

In the absence of sufficient members who were present at the previous meeting 
held on 13 March 2015, it was agreed to defer the consideration of the Minutes to 
the next meeting of the committee.

5 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

It was moved by Councillor B Gardner, duly seconded and

RESOLVED: That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the remainder of the 
business on the grounds that the items to be considered involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the paragraph of 
Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.

6 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 - 
APPLICATION FOR A DRIVER'S LICENCE 

The Committee considered the report of the Licensing Team Leader on an 
application for a Joint Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers Licence where an 
Enhanced Disclosure from the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) had shown 
previous convictions that were relevant to the decision as to the applicant’s 
suitability as a fit and proper person to hold a licence to drive a taxi in the Dover 
District. The applicant was convicted of the offence on 15 December 2008.



In accordance with the approved procedure Members heard evidence from the 
applicant and the applicant’s representative, concerning the circumstances 
surrounding the conviction and spoke to the applicant’s suitability as a fit and proper 
person.

The Committee withdrew to consider its decision and upon returning the Head of 
Legal Services explained that advice had been given to members in relation to 
Dover District Council’s Policy and the relevance of convictions to applications.

RESOLVED: That having regard to the evidence, and in accordance with sections 
51 and 59 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976, the application for a Joint Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence be approved for an initial period of six months; and

a) That the Licensing Team Leader should monitor the applicant’s 
performance for the duration of this period and;

b) That providing there are no issues during the initial six months, 
the licence be granted for a further six months.

The meeting ended at 2.34 pm.



Minutes of the meeting of the REGULATORY COMMITTEE held at the Council 
Offices, Whitfield on Tuesday, 18 August 2015 at 10.03 am.

Present:

Chairman: Councillor B W Butcher

Councillors: 

Also Present:

P S Le Chevalier
S J Jones

Applicant (Minute No 16)
Applicant’s representative (Minute No 16)
Applicant (Minute No 17)

Officers: Head of Legal Services
Licensing Enforcement Officer
Democratic Support Officer

11 APOLOGIES 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor B Gardner.

12 APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS 

There were no substitute Members appointed.

13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest made by Members.

14 MINUTES 

The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 30 July 2015 were approved 
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

15 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

It was moved by Councillor P S Le Chevalier, duly seconded and 

RESOLVED: That, under Section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the remainder of the business on the 
grounds that the items to be considered involved the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the paragraph of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.

16 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 - 
APPLICATION FOR A DRIVER'S LICENCE 

The Committee considered the report of the Licensing Team Leader on an 
application for a Joint Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Licence where an 
Enhanced Disclosure from the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) had shown a 
number of previous convictions that were relevant to the decision as to the 
applicant’s suitability as a fit and proper person to hold a licence to drive a taxi in the 
Dover District. The applicant was last convicted of an offence in November 2013, 
relating to incidents which took place in January and February of the same year; this 



was outside of the Council’s Policy which suggested that 3 years should have 
elapsed before an application is considered.

In accordance with the approved procedure Members offered the applicant and the 
applicant’s representative the opportunity to present evidence concerning the 
circumstances surrounding the convictions.

The Committee withdrew to consider its decision and upon resuming the Head of 
Legal Services explained that she had advised the committee in relation to the 
Council’s Policy guidelines and Sections 51 and 59 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 relating to the applicant’s suitability as a fit and 
proper person.

RESOLVED: That having regard to the evidence, the Committee considered the 
application for a Joint Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence be refused by reason that less than 3 years had elapsed 
since the last incident and there was not sufficient reason to depart 
from the Council’s Policy.

17 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1976 - 
APPLICATION FOR A DRIVER'S LICENCE 

The Committee considered the report of the Licensing Team Leader on an 
application for a Joint Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Licence where an 
Enhanced Disclosure from the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) had shown a 
previous conviction that was relevant to the decision as to the applicant’s suitability 
to hold a licence to drive a taxi in the Dover District. As 3 years had elapsed since 
the date of the conviction the application was in accordance with the Council’s 
licensing policy. The matter had been brought before the Committee to determine 
whether the applicant was a fit and proper person to hold a licence. 

In accordance with the approved procedure, Members offered the applicant the 
opportunity to present evidence concerning the circumstances surrounding the 
conviction. The Committee withdrew to consider its decision and upon resuming the 
meeting the Head of Legal Services explained that she had advised the Committee 
in relation to Sections 51 and 59 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 and Dover District Council’s licensing policy.

RESOLVED: That having regard to the evidence, the Committee considered that 
the applicant was a fit and proper person in accordance with Sections 
51 and 59 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 and the application for a Joint Hackney and Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence be approved for a period of 12 months.

The meeting ended at 10.58 am.



RegulatoryCtteeprocedure.doc

DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL

 REGULATORY COMMITTEE PROCEDURE FOR HEARINGS

1. Introduction of all present. Chairman

2. Purpose of hearing and procedure. Licensing Team Leader

3. Applicant asked to confirm receipt of agenda, Legal Adviser
Licensing Manager's report, Council's policy
guidelines and procedure for hearing. 

4. Licensing Manager's report introduced and Licensing Team Leader
issues summarised

5. Licensing Manager calls any witnesses. Licensing Team Leader
Each witness in turn :
(i)  will give evidence
(ii) may be questioned by the applicant or
     applicant's representatives
(iii) may be questioned by the Committee
(iv) may, if necessary, be re-questioned by the
      Licensing Manager

6. Presentation of case and particular issues   Applicant or his/
(including whether applicant accepts the facts her representative
presented or wishes to correct them)   

7. Applicant or his/her representative may call Applicant or his/
any witnesses (including the Applicant him/ her representative
herself). Each witness in turn:
(i)  will give evidence
(ii) may be questioned by the Licensing Manager
(iii) may be questioned by the Committee
(iv) may, if necessary, be re-questioned by the
      applicant/applicant's representative

 
8. Further questions may be asked of any of the Committee

parties or any witnesses for the purpose of
obtaining further relevant information or
clarification

9. Final submission. Licensing Team Leader

10. Final submission. Applicant

11. Committee withdraws to consider in private.
Clerk and Legal Adviser may be invited to assist
the Committee.

12. If the Committee requires any further information
from any party or any further evidence, all parties will
be recalled and the meeting reconvened.  Any Member
of the Committee who has not been present during the



RegulatoryCtteeprocedure.doc

whole of the proceedings must not take part in the 
decision making.

13. Committee reconvenes.  Any legal advice given to the Legal Adviser
Committee in private will be summarised to the Applicant.

14. The decision of the Committee is given to all parties. Chairman
In the event of a decision to refuse, suspend or 
revoke an application, the applicant is told that he/she
has the right of appeal through the Magistrates Court
and then to the Crown Court.

NOTES

1. The opportunities given to the parties within this procedure to ask questions 
should be used only for that purpose - to ask questions. The person asking 
the question will not be allowed to use this right as an opportunity to make 
statements.

2. Members of the Committee are, as a general rule, expected to ask questions 
of the various parties in accordance with this procedure.   However 
circumstances may arise where it is desirable for a Member to seek 
immediate clarification or a point made by a witness or by a party during the 
course of giving evidence, answering questions being put to him by another 
party or making a submission.  This should be permitted by the Chairman 
provided that the question is relevant and is conducive to the proper conduct 
of the hearing.  Where additional questions are permitted after the Applicant's 
case has been summed up, the Applicant or his/her representative will always 
be given the final right of reply.

3. Under no circumstances must the parties or their witnesses offer members of 
the Committee information in the absence of the other party.  Similarly 
Members must not attempt to gain information from any party at the hearing 
in the absence of the other.  These are essential requirements of the proper 
application of the rules of natural justice.

4. The Chairman may vary this procedure as circumstances require but having 
full regard to adhering to the rules of natural justice.



DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL

LICENSING OF DRIVER, VEHICLES AND OPERATORS

PROCEDURE FOR HEARINGS BEFORE COMMITTEE

1. Applicant introduced to all Members and Officers Chairman

2. Applicant advised of reason for hearing and procedure to 
be adopted

Chairman

3. Applicant asked to confirm receipt of the following 
documents:

 Agenda item relating to the case
 Council’s policy guidelines
 Procedure to be adopted during the hearing
 Extract from the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 

1974

Legal Advisor

4. The District Licensing Officer’s case to be summarised and 
issues identified.

DLO

5. District Licensing Officer/representative may call witnesses 
(including the Licensing Officer).  Each witness in turn:

(i) gives evidence 
(ii) may be questioned by Applicant/Applicant’s 

representative
(iii) may be questioned by Members
(iv) may, if necessary, be re-questioned by the District 

Licensing Officer

DLO

6. Applicant’s case to be summarised and issues identified 
(including whether he/she accepts the facts or wishes to 
correct them).

Applicant/Applicant's 
representative

7. Applicant/Applicant’s representative may call any 
witnesses (including the Applicant him/herself).  Each 
witness in turn:

(i) gives evidence 
(ii) may be questioned by  District Licensing 

Officer/representative
(iii) may be questioned by Members
(iv) may, if necessary, be re-questioned by the 

Applicant/Applicant’s representative

Applicant/Applicant's 
representative

8. Further questions may be asked of any of the parties or 
any witnesses with a view to obtaining further information 
or clarification.

Members



9. District Licensing Officer’s  makes final submission. DLO

10. Applicant makes final submission Applicant

11. Resolution to consider matter in private. 
Applicant/representative, Licensing Officers, police and 
other witnesses, press and public leave the room. Clerk 
and Legal Officers may be invited to remain.

Members

12. Members consider their decision.  If Members require any 
further information from any party or any further evidence, 
all parties are recalled.  Any Member who has not been 
present during the whole of the proceedings must not 
participate in decision making.  

Members

12A. Any legal advice given in private will be summarised to the 
Applicant.

Legal

13. All who have retired return and are informed of the 
decision.  In the event of a decision for refusal, suspension 
or revocation of the application, the applicant is advised 
that he/she has the right of appeal through the Magistrates 
Court and then to the Crown Court.

Chairman

NOTES

1. The opportunities afforded in this procedure for the parties, their representatives and 
Members to ask questions are opportunities to do just that.  The person given the 
right to ask questions will not be allowed to use this right as an opportunity to make 
statements.

2. Members of the Sub-Committee are, as a general rule, expected to ask questions of 
the various parties in accordance with the procedure.  However, circumstances may 
arise where it is desirable for a Member to seek immediate clarification of a point 
made by a witness or by a party during the course of giving evidence, answering 
questions being put to him by another party or, making a submission.  This should be 
permitted by the Chairman provided that the question is relevant and is conducive to 
the proper conduct of the hearing.  Where additional questions are permitted after the 
Applicant's case has been summed up, the Applicant/Applicant's Representative will 
always be given the right of final reply.

3. Under no circumstances must the parties or their witnesses offer Members of the 
Sub-Committee information in the absence of the other party.  Similarly, Members 
must not attempt to illicit information from any party to the hearing in the absence of 
the other.  These are essential requirements of the proper application of the rules of 
natural justice.

4. The Chairman may vary this procedure as circumstances require but having full 
regard to adhere to the rules of natural justice.



Dover District Council

Subject: LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 
1976 – APPLICATION TO LICENCE VEHICLE OUTSIDE OF 
POLICY GUIDELINES

Meeting and Date: Regulatory Committee – 1 December 2015

Report of: Licensing Team Leader

Classification: Unrestricted

Purpose of the report: To consider an application to grant a licence for a private hire 
vehicle outside of policy guidelines

Recommendation: That the Committee determine the application

1. Summary

1.1 Mr David Lamb of Relyon Transport has submitted an application to the Council 
asking for permission to licence a Ford Transit Minibus as a Private Hire Vehicle. 
This vehicle falls outside of the current vehicle age policy; being registered on 19 
June 2007, although it falls well within the current mileage limit.  The vehicle has 
eight seats and will be used to transport passengers to and from Dover Port/Cruise 
Terminal and the parking facilities at the applicant’s business address and it is not 
intended to be used for any other purpose.

2. Introduction and Background 

2.1 The regulation of Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Vehicles is a statutory duty of the 
Council under the provisions of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

2.2 The Dover District Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Policy states in 
paragraph 2.4.1 that:

“No application for a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle licence will be granted if 
the vehicle, when application is made, exceeds 5 years of age, or 100,000 miles.”  

2.3 The policy also states “applicants wishing to licence vehicles outside of the policy 
should show sufficient reason for the Council to deviate from agreed policy”. 

2.4 Mr Lamb has applied to licence a Ford Transit Minibus as a private hire vehicle. The 
vehicle was first registered on 19 June 2007 and therefore falls outside of the current 
vehicle age policy.  The vehicle had covered mileage of 33,243 miles at the time of 
the application.  Mr Lamb states that the vehicle is in very good condition, both inside 
and out and maintained to a very high standard. Mr Lamb also states that the vehicle 
will only be used for transporting passengers to and from Dover Port and Cruise 
Terminal and the parking facilities which the company operates in Poulton Close, 
Dover and will not be used for any other purpose. The vehicle has been modified to 
only carry a maximum of 8 passengers.

2.5 The Licensing Enforcement Officer inspected the vehicle on 9 October 2015 and 
found the vehicle to be in very good condition and all relevant paperwork to be in 
order.



3 Identification of Options

     Options:
(a) To allow the application for the grant of Private Hire Vehicle licence to the 
vehicle notwithstanding that this would be a deviation from existing policy. 

(b) To reject the application as there are insufficient reasons to justify a deviation 
from existing policy. 

4 Evaluation of Options

Options:
(a) The vehicle is over the age defined in policy for the grant of a licence. 

However, Mr Lamb is requesting that the Committee consider whether the 
vehicle could be licensed as he feels his application is exceptional 
circumstances and that the vehicle is maintained to very high standard, and is 
in such good condition. It is also important to note that the vehicle will not be 
used for purposes other than the transport of passengers to and from the Port 
and Cruise Terminal and this could be attached as a condition on the licence.

If such a deviation from policy were allowed then it would be necessary to 
make clear that this was an exceptional circumstance and that under normal 
circumstances such a deviation would not be considered.

(b) If the Committee felt that there were insufficient reasons to deviate from the 
Policy, then the application should be refused.

5  Resource Implications

      There are no resource implications arising from this report.

6 Appendices

      Appendix A – Application form and supporting papers submitted by Mr Lamb

7 Background Papers

            Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy

           Contact Officer: Rebecca Pordage, Licensing Team Leader. Ext.2279   



Appendix A























Subject: Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 - Application 
for Street Trading Consent, Deal Seafront

Meeting  and Date: Regulatory Committee – 1 December  2015

Report  of: Licensing Team Leader

Classification: Unrestricted

Purpose  of the report: To consider an application for a Street Trading Consent

1. Summary

1.1 Mr William Humphrey of Wills Catering has applied to the Council for permission to 
trade from a converted vehicle on the Deal Promenade, north of Deal Pier, Beach 
Street, Deal.

2. Introduction and Background

2.1 The  Council  controls  street  trading  under  Schedule  4  of  the  Local  Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982.

2.2 Paragraph 1 of Schedule 4 to the Act states that: 

“street” includes –

(a) any road, footway, beach or other area to which the public have access without 
payment”

2.3 With effect from 1 April 1994 Dover District Council passed a resolution to designate 
a number of streets within the district as ‘Consent Streets.’ In a Consent Street, street 
trading is prohibited without the consent of the Council. 

Beach Street is designated as a Consent Street.  A list of all the designated consent 
streets within the District is included within the Street Trading Guidance Notes shown 
at Appendix A.

2.4 In relation to Street Trading Consents, Paragraph 7(2) of Schedule 4 states that: 

“…the Council may grant a Consent if they think fit.”

Paragraph 7(10) goes on to say that:

“a Street Trading Consent may be granted for any period not exceeding 12 months 
but may be revoked at any time.”

2.5 Mr William Humphrey has applied to the Council for permission to trade from a 
converted vehicle in Beach Street, Deal.

The application is to trade Monday to Sunday 08:00hrs to 23:00hrs.

The application is to sell French sticks, Burgers, Egg, Sausage, Bacon, Snacks and hot 
and cold drinks. 
A copy of the application and location plan is included at Appendix B. Photographs of 
the proposed site are shown at Appendix C.

Dover District Council



2.6    Following  receipt  of  a  valid  application  on  23  September 2015,  a  28  day  
consultation exercise  was  conducted  with  a notice displayed at the proposed site, 
and notices  posted  to  properties  in  the  vicinity  of  the proposed site and 
consultation with the Highways Authority, Dover Town Council, Kent Fire & Rescue, 
Kent Police and various internal Council departments.

2.7     45 representations were received objecting to the application during the consultation 
period:

1 Tom Harvey - objects to the application as he is of the opinion that a remote 
burger van sited along the seafront is not what Deal needs. There is enough 
fast food on offer for the general public and visitors alike notwithstanding the 
additional debris and seagull volumes attracted by more food this current 
proposal could create. 

2 Martin Horncastle - objects due to the experience of burger bars situated on 
the High Street.  Complaints about the smell of cooking, littering, health & 
hygiene issues and the unsightly nature of the business.  A business of this 
kind will detract from the views and the character of the area.  Numerous other 
businesses selling similar goods are situated within meters of the proposed 
site.  The unit would cause an obstruction for pedestrians which could cause an 
accident or injury.  There is no benefit to have a mobile unit of this nature in this 
location. 

3 Deborah Jeffery - believes that this will create more rubbish on the beach 
causing a health hazard to humans and animals.  It will ruin the outlook of Deal 
seafront plus Deal has Burger establishments already.

4 Michael Fogarty - objects to the smell of cooking, obstruction of the 
promenade, obstruction of parking and entrances to Royal Hotel and Pier.  This 
will damage the character of Deal front.

4 Peter Wraight - this is a busy location with a lot of traffic.  The presence of a 
burger van will be unsightly, add to the clutter of the area and cause a public 
safety hazard. 

6 Pandora’s Box - a burger van is not in keeping with the area also poor diet 
and smell.

7 Mr and Mrs Ridley - concerned that a burger van would be incompatible with 
the conservation area and would add litter on the beach.

8 Sally Sullivan - this sort of unit will not enhance the lovely seafront, there will 
be litter associated with sales of this type of food, seagulls will have another 
reason to flock onto the front.  There are a number of independent restaurants, 
hotels, cafes and pubs all of which serve great food.  There are no toilet or 
hand-washing facilities for customers of the proposed food outlet.

9 Simon Green  - it is totally unacceptable for a burger van to be allowed space.  
There is an existing and very new burger restaurant and a burger van opposite 
would down grade the area and cause a nuisance with litter.

10 Rhiannon Tise - the burger van will take away business from the already 
established businesses on the seafront.  The town does not need another 
Burger van, the smells from the van will pollute the seafront and be off putting 
for locals and visitors who enjoy the promenade.



11 Peter Kean - there are already sufficient facilities along the seafront to satisfy 
the catering needs of locals and visitors.  The addition of a Burger bar will 
detract from the seafront atmosphere, litter and disturbances will inevitably 
occur.

12 Guy Scantlebury - A burger van would be surplus to requirements and would 
be a backward step in the towns efforts to provide good food in a great 
environment.  A Burger Van does not belong on the Front.

13 Eyvor Fogarty - A Burger van would detract form the seaside general 
attractiveness and clean air.  It would not be in keeping with the area, be unfair 
competition to other establishments, potentially create more litter and 
encourage vermin and other creatures.  A Burger van is not an essential part of 
the tourist plan for this area.

14  Jonathan Husain - A Burger van will increase the number of predatory and 
potentially dangerous seagulls attracted by the food.  It will increase the 
amount of refuse, cause a strong and pervasive smell of frying and exhaust 
from the engine that has to remain on during cooking.  It is not needed, there 
are plenty of cafes on the seafront.

15  Ruth Roberts - A burger van is an ugly idea and it will spoil the look of the 
promenade.  It will undermine the established businesses in the area plus 
having a van on the Front all day with its generator going and the smell of frying 
will ruin the work Deal town has recently gone through, it will cheapen the 
seafront.  Publicans do a good job maintaining order with their customers but 
they cannot be responsible for them once they leave their immediate premises.  
With a reduced Police force we do not need a beachfront Burger van.

16.  Jane Will - A lot of money has been spent improving the area, a Burger van 
would lower the tone and would give gangs of youths and people coming out of 
pubs late at night somewhere to congregate.

17.  Keith Rawson - A Burger van is totally at odds with the cleaned up image of 
deal seafront.  There are more than sufficient eateries in the area so a Burger 
van offers the area nothing.

18.  Ann Bishop - There are already a large number of eating places with a variety 
of choice.  It would be highly likely to add to an increase of litter and it will 
detract from Deal’s very pleasant seafront.

19.  Robin Green - It will be a degradation of visual amenity on the Deal 
promenade; it will create an unacceptable level of smell and other forms of 
environmental pollution.  The levels of litter and waste produce will be 
unacceptably high.  It will create an obstruction on a public highway and it 
would be an unnecessary economic addition to the deal community.

20.  Pauline Milner - Cannot see how a mobile catering outlet will add anything at 
all to the area apart from litter.  The Burger vans position will prove an eyesore 
and be an obstruction on the seafront.

21.  David Battersea - The promenade between the Royal Hotel and the Pier is not 
the right location and out of keeping with existing development.  Burger vans 
attract unwanted social behavior at night, litter, noise and odour.

22.  Mr and Mrs Alton - A burger van will have an adverse effect on the amenity of 
residents and visitors to the area.  Noise, litter, smell disturbance from the 
general increase of numbers visiting the van.  It will look completely out of place 
and unsightly plus impact adversely on the panoramic view out to sea. There is 
no requirement for another food outlet and the Burger van would compromise 
the enjoyment and safety of everyone wishing to stroll along the promenade.



23.  Mrs C Woolls - The Burger van would be an eyesore, new businesses have 
just opened in the area.  The smell would be another problem, it would also 
cause noise and annoyance in the evenings, more rubbish on the seafront and 
cars pulling up and parking.

24. Georgina Bishop - It will be a cause of anti-social behavior and danger to 
environmental health in terms of probable litter, smell and sound.  It could also 
affect human mobility along the seafront.  It would be a degradation of visual 
amenity.

25.  William Elliot - It will lead to anti-social behavior on the part of some 
customers, littering in the area of the vehicle which will create health issues on 
the promenade and adjacent beach.  The siting of this vehicle will degrade the 
visual amenity of the seafront and mobility of pedestrians.  

26.  Elizabeth Docherty - The Burger bar will create Air Pollution, Noise Pollution, 
attract people after closing time of pubs, clubs and late night venues.  It would 
detract from the ambiance of the area.  There are plentiful amounts of fast food 
outlets in the vicinity and deal does not need another one.

27.  Stephen Threadgold - There is no need for another food outlet, it would 
threaten local businesses and the character of the area plus attract undesirable 
groups of people gathering in the vicinity.

28.  Jonathan Crawley - A Burger van would not enhance the immediate 
surroundings nor is it necessary with the variety of food available nearby from 
existing providers. It may also serve to attract less desirable elements at certain 
times e.g. evenings.

29.  Jem Millar - This is the wrong location for a Burger van.  The noise, fumes and 
litter created by these vans will be detrimental to this area and bring no benefit, 
it will ruin the feel of the area.

30.  Deal Town Council - Object to this application as it would lead to excess litter 
in the area and restrict the space available for public use along the promenade. 

31.  Robyn Bailey-West - Burger vans will attract more throw away waste/litter, 
more seagulls, pigeons, rats but more worrying, it will attract anti-social 
behavior in the evenings amplified after pub closing times making the seafront 
a No Go Area after dark. 

32.  Louise Grinstead - A Burger van will bring smell, rubbish and cars pulling up 
to buy from the Burger van.  It would cause an obstruction for the pedestrians 
using this stretch of seafront.  It would be unsightly. 

33.  R C Grinstead - This will generate litter and refuse from discarded cups, 
polystyrene food boxes, paper wrappings etc.  it would attract an unsociable 
and undesirable crowd at night.  It would also encourage more ‘Pop Up’ 
wagons on the promenade.  It will spoil the promenade for the public.

34.  John Burrows - This area is much used by visitors and residents of deal to 
enjoy the beach and fresh sea air.  It would be shameful if this was 
contaminated by the stench of cooking burgers, hotdogs and cooking oil.  The 
Van would spoil the panoramic view and encourage passing cars to stop on 
Beach Street to buy takeaway food.  The mobile facility would also generate 
more litter problems.

35.  Nick Stevens - The granting of an application for a Burger van to trade on the 
Promenade would be hugely detrimental and the arrival of a Burger van would 
cast a huge shadow over other businesses trading in the area.



36.  Gary Holmes - The Burger van will devalue the efforts of regeneration in the 
area.  Local traders have invested in improving buildings and developing 
businesses to help enhance deal’s charm and the van will add to air pollution 
and noise detracting from the appeal of Deal’s seafront.  It will be detrimental to 
the area.

37. Hamish Cowie - A further takeaway facility on the promenade will only 
exacerbate the litter and seagull problem on the promenade.  There are a 
number of other burger outlets and there is no need for a Burger van.

38.  Frederick Wilson - Strongly object to the siting of this van because of the 
smell, food waste and litter, encouraging seagulls, increase in illegally parked 
vehicles, the lack of need for another purveyor of food, the unfairness to other 
businesses and the eyesore it will be.

39.  G.P White - This would completely lower the tone of the area which has been 
improving due to the efforts and financial input of the present owners of the 
shops and restaurants on the Front and it will take business away.

40.  Karen Rice - There are already eight places to obtain food from and shortly to 
be nine with the new cycle café opening.  A Burger van on the seafront is 
unnecessary and would hinder customer views in the current premises. Litter – 
the bins along the seafront cannot take anymore litter and are often emptied by 
the seagulls which causes an immense mess.  A take away van would only add 
to this further.

41.  Jim Cleaver - A burger van would ruin a lovely view; the seafront is Deal’s 
prized asset.  The obstruction, smell and associated litter would spoil the 
walkers, cyclists, dog walkers and children all enjoying a walk on the ‘prom’ and 
traffic would be parking illegally.  If the proposed vehicle used anything other 
than mains power, it would have to have a generator running or run the engine 
to create electric and that would be noise nuisance.

42.  Tim Murphy - There are sufficient establishments where people can eat in this 
area.  There is limited parking and this will exasperate the present problems 
from 08:00hrs. and the litter it would bring should be taken into consideration. 

43.  Friends of North Deal - It will be unfair competition for the cafés and 
restaurants which line Beach Street who pay full business rates.  The area in 
question is the busiest part of the promenade and the van will be a hindrance to 
pushchairs, wheelchair users and cyclists.  Such a business will inadvertently 
create more discarded rubbish by patrons.  The promenade is a much-loved 
facility for local people not businesses.

44.  Alasdair Goulden - A great deal of money has been spent improving the look 
of Deal seafront.  Putting a Burger bar into this area would detract from all the 
work that has been done, very likely increase significantly the amount of litter 
dropped and is quite out of keeping with what the town are trying to achieve.

45. Highways – At the application location there is the national cycle route 1 and 
is a pedestrianised high amenity footway so the response from KCCH is that 
we will not approve this application.



2.8 Copies of the representations are included at Appendix D.

3 Options available
Options:

(a) To grant the street trading consent to be issued for a period not 
exceeding 12 months.

(b) To refuse  street trading consent

4 Evaluation of Options
Options:

(a) The Committee may choose to issue the consent for a shorter period 
than 12 months for review.

(b) If the Committee felt that there were insufficient reasons to depart 
from the Council’s Policy, then the consent should be refused.

Members should have regard to criteria at page 7 of Appendix A.

5 Appendices
Appendix A – Street Trading Guidance Notes including a list of designated consent 
streets

Appendix B – Application & Location Plan

Appendix C – Photographs of proposed site 

Appendix D – Representations

6 Background Papers
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982
Dover District Council Street Trading Guidance Notes 

Contact Officer: Rebecca Pordage, Licensing Team Leader. Ext.2279



Street Trading Consent Streets 
Deal 

 Albert Road

 Alfred Square (High Street to Alfred Row)

 Beach Street

 Broad Street

 Court Road

 Cornwall Road

 Deal Castle Road

 Dover Road (Ripple Road to The Strand)

 Duke Street (High Street to Robert Street)

 Farrier Street (High Street to Middle Street)

 George Alley

 Gilford Road

 Godwyn Road

 Golf Road (Godwyn Road to Western Road)

 Granville Road

 Griffin Street (High Street to George Street)

 Hamilton Road

 High Street

 Ivy Place

 King Street

 Kingsdown Road

 London Road (Queen Street to Sholden New Road)

 Manor Road

 Marine Road

 Marina, The

 Market Street (High Street to Middle Street)

 Middle Deal Road

 Middle Street    (King Street to Market Street

Appendix A



 King Street to Middle Street Car Park  

 Broad Street in southerly direction for 20 metres  

 South Street in northerly direction for 20 metres)  

 Mill Hill  

 Mill Road  

 Mongeham Road (London Road to St Richards Road)  

 New Street  

 Oak Street (High Street to Middle Street)  

 Park Avenue  

 Park Street (High Street to eastern boundary of No. 4)  

 Peter Street  

 Prince of Wales Terrace  

 Promenade (From junction of The Marina/Beach Street to southern boundary of 

Deal  Castle)  

 Queen Street  

 St George's Road (High Street to western boundary of Town Hall Car Park)  

 St Georges Passage  

 St Richards Road  

 Salisbury Road  

 Sondes Road  

 South Court  

 South Parade  

 South Street  

 Stanhope Road (High Street to eastern boundary of Astor Theatre)  

 Station Road (Dover Road to Court Road)  

 Strand, The  

 Union Road (High Street to western boundary wall of Union Road Car Park)  

 Victoria Parade  

 Victoria Road  

 Water Street (High Street to Robert Street)  

 Wellington Road (High Street to eastern boundary wall of No. 27)  

 Western Road  



Dover  
 A20 (Eastern Dock to Court Wood Interchange)  

 Alkham Road (Abbey Road to London Road, Temple Ewell)  

 Astor Avenue  

 Barton Road  

 Beaconsfield Avenue  

 Beaconsfield Road  

 Bench Street  

 Biggin Street  

 Bridge Street  

 Brookfield Avenue (Whitfield Avenue to Buckland Avenue)  

 Buckland Avenue  

 Cambridge Road  

 Camden Crescent  

 Cannon Street  

 Castle Hill Road (Maison Dieu Road to Upper Road)  

 Castle Street  

 Chapel Lane  

 Charlton Green (Frith Road to Maison Dieu Road)  

 Cherry Tree Avenue  

 Chilton Way  

 Church Street  

 Coombe Valley Road  

 Connaught Road  

 Crabble Hill  

 Crabble Road  

 Dieu Stone Lane (Cannon Street to bridge over the River Dour)  

 Dolphin Lane  

 Dolphin Passage  

 Dolphin Place  

 Duoro Place  

 Eaton Road  

 Edwards Road  



 Effingham Crescent  

 Elms Vale Road (Elms Hill to Folkestone Road)  

 Esplanade  

 Fishmongers Lane  

 Flying Horse Lane  

 Folkestone Road (Little Farthingloe Farm to Priory Road)  

 Frith Road  

 Gaol Lane  

 High Street  

 Honeywood Road  

 King Street  

 Ladywell  

 Last Lane  

 Lewisham Road  

 London Road, Dover  

 London Road, River  

 London Road, Temple Ewell (Railway Bridge to London Road, River)  

 Maison Dieu Place  

 Maison Dieu Road  

 Marine Parade (Waterloo Crescent to Townwall Street)  

 Market Square  

 Market Street  

 Melbourne Avenue  

 Mill Lane  

 New Bridge  

 New Street  

 Park Avenue  

 Park Place  

 Pencester Road  

 Peter Street  

 Priory Hill (High Street to the western boundary of the United Reformed Church)  

 Priory Road  

 Priory Street  

 Queen Street  



 Queens Gardens  

 Russell Street  

 St James Lane  

 St James Street  

 St Mary's Passage  

 Snargate Street (Service Road)  

 Stembrook  

 Tavernors Lane  

 Tower Hamlets Road  

 Tower Hamlets Street  

 Unnamed road between Cambridge Terrace and Waterloo Crescent  

 Victoria Crescent  

 Waterloo Crescent  

 Wellesley Road  

 Whitfield Avenue  

 Whitfield Hill  

 Wood Street  

 Woolcomber Street  

 Worthington Street  

 York Street  

NB. The promenade of Dover has been specifically excluded from consent street provisions 

but the prior approval of the Dover Harbour Board is required.  

Sandwich  
 All streets within area bounded by The Butts, Millwall, Ropewalk, The River Stour 

and The  Guestling Stream  

 The Ash Road (A257) (Town Wall to Sandwich Bypass)  

 Deal Road (Dover Road to Sandwich Bypass)  

 Dover Road (Town Wall to Deal Road)  

 Ramsgate Road (High Street to Sandwich Bypass)  

 Woodnesborough Road (Town Wall to Sandwich Bypass  



Appendix B





Plan of area (applicant location indicated by X):   
 
           

                                                                        
 
 
 

 

 



Appendix C



Appendix D

































































































Dover District Council

Subject: Highways Act 1980 – Section 115E - Bloody Mary’s, 160 – 162 High 
Street, Deal 

Meeting and Date: Regulatory Committee – 1st December 2015

Report of: Licensing Team Leader

Classification: Unrestricted

Purpose of the report: Permission to site street furniture on the highway

Recommendation: That the Committee determine the application

1. Summary

The regulation of the placing of tables and chairs on a highway is a statutory function 
of the Council under the Section 115E, of the Highways Act 1980.

2. Introduction and Background 

2.1 Mr Gary Lahr has held a permit to site street furniture outside Bloody Mary’s, 160 – 
162 High Street, Deal, since 29 January 2015.  The current permit is for 4 tables and 
8 chairs.

2.2 Since this permit has been issued, there have been 3 complaints regarding the street 
furniture outside the premises, all relating to the same weekend.  The complaints 
were all of the same nature – that on a particular weekend in June, the amount of 
chairs outside the premises was 22.  The Licensing Enforcement Officer spoke to Mr 
Lahr, who stated that the reason for this was that patrons were carrying the indoor 
furniture outside.  Advice was given on monitoring the area more vigilantly, and there 
have been no complaints received since.

2.3 Mr Lahr has now applied to increase this to allow the siting of 6 tables and 20 - 24 
chairs on the highway immediately in front of the premises.  The application states 
that these will be good quality steel chairs and tables.  (Photograph provided).  A 
copy of the application form is shown at Appendix A.  A plan of the proposed siting 
of the street furniture is shown at Appendix B.

2.4 As part of the consultation process views have been sought from local businesses, 
Kent Highway Services and the Police.  The application was also advertised at the 
site by way of a Notice and copies were delivered to nearby frontagers. 

2.5 Three representations were received in respect of this application (see Appendix C), 
as follows:

Andy Maple (now withdrawn) – Suggests that a maximum of 18 chairs might be a 
more appropriate number for the space available.  Mr Maple states that despite the 
best efforts of the proprietors to keep the pavement clear, there was an occasion 
when over 20 chairs and stools were outside on the pavement and caused 
congestion, impeding the free movement of pedestrians.  Mr Maple feels that there 
may be safety issues if as many as 24 chairs are allowed.

Councillor Bill Gardner (now withdrawn) - submitted a representation stating that 
whilst there is room for more chairs, he suggested a half-way point between their 
current allowed number and their requested number.  Councillor Gardner also 



pointed out that there were occasions in the summer that they did not stick to the 
amount of chairs allowed, and that this caused problems.   

Cynthia Horncastle – The pedestrian area is not wide enough to allow the safe 
passage of pedestrians with prams, pushchairs and wheelchair users.  It is very 
intimidating to walk through a crowd of people congregated on the pavement who 
make no effort to move to allow pedestrians through.  The increase in noise would be 
significant in this quiet residential area and residents would be unable to open their 
windows in the summer.  It is noted that the hours have been reduced to 20:00, who 
will police the area to ensure that tables and chairs will be removed?

2.6 Following negotiations, the applicant agreed to reduce the amount of chairs on the 
application to 16.  A new plan is attached at Appendix B.  All 3 of the objectors were 
contacted, and Andy Maples and Councillor Gardner withdrew their representations 
based on this amendment to the application.  Mrs Horncastle wishes for her 
representation to still stand, as she still feels that this is too many chairs and tables 
for the area.  

2.6 Highways have commented (see Appendix D) to say that if this permit is granted, 
they would request a condition that an absolute minimum of 1.2m of clear footway is 
achieved at all times.  

3 Options available

(1)  To allow the application as applied for

           (2)  To allow the application as applied for but with additional conditions 

           (3)   To reject the application.

      Appendices

Appendix A – Application form and supporting paperwork

Appendix B – Revised plan following amendment to application showing proposed 
siting of street furniture

Appendix C - Representations  

Appendix D – Comment from Highways

 5         Background Papers

Contact Officer: Rebecca Pordage, Licensing Team Leader. Ext.2279   



 



Appendix A











Appendix B



Appendix C









Appendix D 



Dover District Council

Subject: Highways Act 1980 – Section 115E - Route 1 (Deal) Ltd, Beach 
Street, Deal 

Meeting and Date:  Regulatory Committee – 1st December 2015

Report of:  Licensing Team Leader

Classification:  Unrestricted

Purpose of the report:  Permission to site street furniture on the highway

Recommendation:  That the Committee determine the application

1. Summary

The regulation of the placing of tables and chairs on a highway is a statutory function 
of the Council under the Section 115E, of the Highways Act 1980.

2. Introduction and Background 

2.1   Mr Nicholas Stevens of Route 1 (Deal) Ltd, Beach Street, Deal has applied for the 
siting of 10 tables and 40 chairs on the highway immediately in front of the premises.  
These are fold away round, metal framed bistro style tables with fold away chairs (up 
to four per table) photographs supplied as part of the application (Appendix A).  A 
plan of the proposed siting of the street furniture is shown at Appendix B.

2.2 As part of the consultation process views have been sought from local businesses, 
Kent Highway Services and the Police.  The application was also advertised at the 
site by way of a Notice and copies were delivered to nearby frontagers. 

2.3 Eight Representations have been received (see Appendix C) and are as follows:-

Deal Town Council – feels that if this application is granted it will restrict public 
access along the promenade.  It is also expected that Stagecoach in liaison with KCC 
will be reinstating the bus shelter near this area so the surrounding area should be 
kept clear for pedestrians.

Tom Harvey - feels that starting at 7am does not sit well, as there is  already an early 
noise issue with service/environmental vehicles and operatives and would not 
welcome further noise by the laying out of potential noise of the establishments 
patrons.  Surely if the opening hours are as indicated on the Notices then their clients 
can remain within the buildings until a more reasonable time – 9am.

Mr M Horncastle - states that when planning was granted for this development it 
excluded the provision for tables and chairs outside the building.  The space taken by 
street furniture will seriously reduce the open space and access to the promenade, 
the walkway and Royal Hotel car park.  The number of tables and chairs is 
disproportionate for the size of the café.  The visual aspect of the street furniture will 
detract from the beautiful outlook.  The area will become overcrowded with potential 
for noise, litter and social behaviour.

Mr R C Grinstead - feels that this proposal would take up a large area of promenade 
dedicated for public use and also it would close an access route from the roadside to 
the beach which is also a public right of way.  The proposed opening hours will also 
cause distress to local residents.



Mrs L Grinstead - feels that ten tables and forty chairs on the seafront would take 
away a large section of public highway.  It would block an entrance from the 
promenade onto the seawall and it would obstruct pushchairs and wheelchair users.  
It would also be an eyesore and not an asset to the lovely seafront.  In this plan, 
opening times are shown as 07:00 – 18:00.  In the original plan the times were 08:00 
– 18:00

Mr M Woolls - states that planning consent states that there shall be no outside 
seating outside the area shown on the approved plan unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The density of tables is too great to allow the 
safe passage of wheelchair users across the public highway or to the café plus there 
is no allowance for the turning circle of a wheelchair user around the proposed tables 
and chairs.  The number of tables proposed is not in keeping with the proposed 
development and the conservation area in which it is situated.  There is no proposed 
provision for the temporary storage of bicycles which in turn would then block the 
public highway and vital pedestrian space.

Mrs C Woolls - states that the original application for this site was granted but with 
the conditions of no outside seating.  Would this proposal obstruct pedestrians and 
wheelchair/pushchair users.  Additional rubbish and litter should also be taken into 
consideration.  It would spoil a lovely part of this promenade.

Mr J Woolls - states that when planning permission was granted for the development 
it excluded the provision for tables and chairs outside this building.  The application 
appears to extend well beyond the boundaries of this property itself, encroaching on 
the public highway/promenade.  The number of table and chairs is disproportionate 
for the size of the café.  The visual aspect of the street furniture will detract from the 
current elegant outlook over the sea.  It will obstruct access from the promenade to 
the Royal Hotel public car park and walkway.  Potential for noise and litter.

2.4 Highways have commented (see Appendix D) that if this permit is granted, they 
would request a condition that the footway leading up to & in front of the Royal Hotel 
is clear at all times.

 3 Options available

(1)  To allow the application as applied for

           (2)  To allow the application as applied for but with additional conditions 

           (3)   To reject the application.

      Appendices

Appendix A – Application form and supporting documentation

Appendix B – Plan of street furniture

Appendix C – Representations  

Appendix D – Highways comments

Contact Officer: Rebecca Pordage, Licensing Team Leader. Ext.2279   



 



Appendix A













Appendix B



Appendix C























Appendix D



Dover District Council

Subject: Highways Act 1980 – Section 115E - The Clarendon Hotel, 51 – 53 
Beach Street, Deal

Meeting and Date:  Regulatory Committee – 1st December 2015

Report of:  Licensing Team Leader

Classification:  Unrestricted

Purpose of the report:  Permission to site street furniture on the highway

Recommendation:  That the Committee determine the application

1. Summary

The regulation of the placing of tables and chairs on a highway is a statutory function 
of the Council under the Section 115E, of the Highways Act 1980.

2. Introduction and Background 

2.1      Mr Robin Norris of The Clarendon Hotel, 51 – 53 High Street has applied for the siting 
of 6 tables and 12 chairs on the highway immediately in front of the premises.  The 
furniture requested is painted chrome folding bistro sets. (Photographs provided as 
part of the application at Appendix A).   The plan of the proposed siting of the street 
furniture is shown at Appendix B.

2.2 As part of the consultation process views have been sought from local businesses, 
Kent Highway Services and the Police.  The application was also advertised at the 
site by way of a Notice and copies were delivered to nearby frontagers. 

2.3 Six Representations have been received (see Appendix C) and are as follows:-

Deal Town Council - If this application is granted it will be a risk to public safety as 
the pavement is not wide enough in this area to leave sufficient access for wheelchair 
users or pushchairs.

Tom Harvey - Starting at 7am does not sit well, as there is  already an early noise 
issue with service/environmental vehicles and operatives and would not welcome 
further noise by the laying out of potential noise of the establishments patrons.  
Surely if the opening hours are as indicated on the Notices then their clients can 
remain within the buildings until a more reasonable time – 9am.

Mr M Horncastle - There is insufficient space on the pavement for tables and chairs, 
the tables and chairs will get moved from their intended position making access even 
more difficult for pedestrians.  The obstruction of the table and chairs will hinder free 
pedestrian flow.  Clients will congregate outside to smoke causing further obstruction 
and environment issues for the public and neighbouring properties.  Pedestrians who 
are forced to walk in the road potentially risk a personal injury accident on this main 
seafront thoroughfare.

Mr R C Grinstead - The pavement is only just wide enough to pass two buggies, 
prams or wheelchairs at one time.  By almost halving the pavement, it will cause 
problems as it did in the past by people and children stepping into the busy road.



Mrs L Grinstead  - Concerned about people sitting outside smoking, this would not 
be nice for customers eating ice cream and the smoke would filter into other 
premises.  The pavement is very narrow and table and chairs would be an 
obstruction for pedestrians and people would have to step out onto the road.  The 
table and chairs would also be moved by people.  Pushchairs especially double 
buggies, wheelchairs and mobility scooters would not be able to pass easily.

Mr J Woolls  - Insufficient space on the pavement for table and chairs. Pedestrians 
will be forced to step out onto the road face potential personal risk and injury.  The 
tables and chairs would be moved by the clients making access difficult for 
pedestrians and hinder the flow of pedestrians.  The presence of exterior tables and 
chairs may result with instances of broken glass from beer/wine glasses being 
knocked over possible cause of injury.

2.4 Highways have commented (see Appendix D) that if this permit is granted, they 
would request a condition that an absolute minimum of 1.2m of clear footway is 
achieved at all times.

 3 Options available

(1)  To allow the application as applied for

           (2)  To allow the application as applied for but with additional conditions 

           (3)   To reject the application.

      Appendices

Appendix A – Application form and supporting paperwork

Appendix B – Proposed plan of siting of street furniture

Appendix C – Representations  

Appendix D – Comment from Highways

Contact Officer: Rebecca Pordage, Licensing Team Leader. Ext.2279   



 



Appendix A









Appendix B



Appendix C

















Appendix D



Dover District Council

Subject: Highways Act 1980 – Section 115E - The Duchess, 1 Bench Street, 
Dover

Meeting and Date:  Regulatory Committee – 1st December 2015

Report of:  Licensing Team Leader

Classification:  Unrestricted

Purpose of the report:  Permission to site street furniture on the highway

Recommendation:  That the Committee determine the application

1. Summary

The regulation of the placing of tables and chairs on a highway is a statutory function 
of the Council under the Section 115E, of the Highways Act 1980.

2. Introduction and Background 

2.1   Funky Monkey Leisure Ltd have applied for the siting of 6 tables and 18 chairs on the 
highway immediately in front of The Duchess, 1 Bench Street, Dover.  The furniture 
requested is aluminum bistro style tables and chairs.  The application is shown at 
Appendix A.  A copy of the plan for the proposed siting of the street furniture is 
shown at Appendix B.

2.2 As part of the consultation process views have been sought from local businesses, 
Kent Highway Services and the Police.  The application was also advertised at the 
site by way of a Notice and copies were delivered to nearby frontagers. 

2.3 One Representation has been received (Appendix C) as follows:-

Dover Town Council - Objects to the application.  The Committee suggests any 
licence restricts the use of pavement for seating to 2 meters width with a removable 
barrier as the premises is situated on a busy and dangerous corner.

2.4 Highways have commented (Appendix D) – Having looked at the photo’s and 
measured the frontage, there are encroachment concerns.  Kent County Council 
Highways will only permit for Bench Street and absolutely nothing for any tables or 
chairs in Queen Street.  Highways are happy for the application to be granted 
providing there is an absolute minimum of 2m width for pedestrians.  Highways 
suggest a barrier/roped off area between the tables and pedestrians.

3 Identifications of Options

(1)  To allow the application as applied for

           (2)  To allow the application as applied for but with additional conditions 

           (3)   To reject the application.

     



4 Appendices

Appendix A – Application form and supporting paperwork

Appendix B – Plan of the siting of proposed street furniture

Appendix C – Representation 

Appendix D – Comment from Highways 

 

Contact Officer: Rebecca Pordage, Licensing Team Leader. Ext.2279   



 



Appendix A















Appendix B



Appendix C



Appendix D



Dover District Council

Subject: Highways Act 1980 – Section 115E - The Seagull, 33 High Street, 
Deal

Meeting and Date:  Regulatory Committee – 1st December 2015

Report of:  Licensing Team Leader

Classification:  Unrestricted

Purpose of the report:  Permission to site street furniture on the highway

Recommendation:  That the Committee determine the application

1. Summary

The regulation of the placing of tables and chairs on a highway is a statutory function 
of the Council under the Section 115E, of the Highways Act 1980.

2. Introduction and Background 

2.1      Pamela Mousley of The Seagull, 33 High Street, Deal has applied for the siting of 3/4 
tables and 12 chairs on the highway immediately in front of the premises.  The 
furniture requested is aluminum bistro style tables and chairs (small) or similar 
quality.  A copy of the application form is shown at Appendix A.  A plan of the 
proposed siting of the street furniture is shown at Appendix B.

2.2 As part of the consultation process views have been sought from local businesses, 
Kent Highway Services and the Police.  The application was also advertised at the 
site by way of a Notice and copies were delivered to nearby frontagers. 

2.3 One Representation has been received (Appendix C) as follows:-

Deal Town Council - Objects unless the 4 tables and 12 chairs are restricted to go 
along the shop front only and do not merge out into the pedestrian area.

2.4 Highways carried out a site meeting with the owner and agreed that should the 
applicant be granted the permit by the Council, she can have a space outside the 
front from the pillar of the building on the left hand side of photo up to the rain water 
channel.  They also requested that a barrier is erected so the walking public can see 
the definitive dining area and the users do not encroach any further out onto the 
highway.  The comments made by Highways along with site photographs can be 
shown at Appendix D.

3 Options available

(1)  To allow the application as applied for

           (2)  To allow the application as applied for but with additional conditions 

           (3)   To reject the application.



4       Appendices

Appendix A – Application form and supporting documentation

Appendix B – Proposed plan of siting of street furniture

Appendix C – Representations 

Appendix D – Comment and photograph provided by Highways following site meeting

 

Contact Officer: Rebecca Pordage, Licensing Team Leader. Ext.2279   



 



Appendix A













Appendix  B



Appendix C



Sent: 25 September 2015 12:26 
To: Katy Sharp 

Subject: RE: Urgent Response Required - Dover District Street Furniture Applications 

Hello Katy, 

Attached is photo for reference. I have agreed with the owner that she can have a space outside the 
front from the pillar of the building on the LHS of photo up to the rain water channel. I also 
requested that she barriers off this section so the walking public can see definitive dining area and 
the users don’t encroach any further out onto the highway. 

Hope this helps 

Darren 

Darren Wadhams 
South East Roadworks Team  
Roadworks Co ordinator Dover District 

Kent County Council 
Highways & Transportation  
Ashford Highway Depot, Henwood Industrial Estate, Javelin Way, Ashford, Kent, TN24 8AD 
Contact Centre : 03000418181 , Mobile 07740560953 
Email : darren.wadhams@kent.gov.uk  Website : www.kent.gov.uk 

Appendix D

mailto:darren.wadhams@kent.gov.uk
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.kent.gov.uk_&d=BQMFAw&c=Z2s6Dur3NAYMdtMp9rcLil3wOzceliw5DrnjnuOKPOg&r=_VLWuU-1IRWnyVdTRs2vqSVx3XfJueiJb7L737hdurc&m=Ok3NyG6jabhBxfYOF4N85NIfGwZ-62EwK3_QJolzU0A&s=ggTOMzK1wSsvJndq-34xkgltK7LsIul2k7d331aMj7c&e=




Dover District Council

Subject: FEES AND CHARGES 2016/17

Meeting and Date: Licensing Committee  25 November 2015

Regulatory Committee  1 December 2015
Cabinet (for information) – 11 January 2016 (part of larger 
report)

Report of: Diane Croucher, Head of Regulatory Services

Portfolio Holder: Councillor N Collor, Portfolio Holder for Access and Property 
Management 

Decision Type: Non- Executive

Classification: Unrestricted

Purpose of the report: This report has been prepared in order to obtain formal approval for 
the levels of fees and charges (F&Cs) for the financial year 2016/17. 
These revised F&Cs will be included in the budget estimates for 
2016/17.

Recommendation: 1. The Licensing Committee approve the Fees and Charges for 
2016/17 as set out in Appendix 3

2. The Regulatory Committee approve the Fess and Charges 
for 2016/17 as set out in Appendix 4.

3. Members approve the general principle that fees are set at 
an appropriate inclusive level, irrespective of VAT status, 
and that the VAT element within the overall fee level is then 
determined.

4. Members approve the general principle that, unless the fee 
is set by statute, licensing fees will be set on a cost recovery 
basis.

5. That the Head of Regulatory Services is authorised to adopt 
fees at, or close to government directed levels without the 
need for further reporting, in cases where the Council is 
awaiting Government guidance and it has not been possible 
to set a fee level at this stage.

6. That the Head of Regulatory Services be authorised in 
consultation with the Director of Governance and the 
Director of Finance, Housing and Community to make minor 
adjustments to the fees and charges as necessary

1. Summary

1.1 The Council’s constitution specifies that F&Cs shall be reviewed annually.  In order to 
meet this requirement all Directors / Heads of Service have been asked to review the 
F&Cs within their areas of responsibility and to produce recommended levels for 
2016/17.



2. Introduction and Background

2.1 The Council’s constitution specifies that F&Cs shall be reviewed annually.

2.2 The level of Member approval required is dependent upon the types of F&Cs raised 
and therefore reports have to be submitted to:

 Licensing Committee 
 Regulatory Committee 
 Planning Committee (for information only)
 Cabinet 

2.3 In order to meet this requirement it is proposed to submit the following reports:

 Licensing Committee - Report to meeting on 25 November 2015 of all F&Cs 
to be set by the Licensing Committee.

 Regulatory Committee – Report to meeting on 1 December 2015 of all F&Cs 
to be set by the Regulatory Committee.

 Planning Committee  Report (for information) to the meeting on 19 
November 2015 of all F&Cs relevant to the Planning Committee.

 Cabinet  Report to the meeting on 11 January 2016 of all F&Cs, but seeking 
specific approval of those F&Cs set by Cabinet.

2.4 Members are reminded that in 2004/05 a Member and Officer Review group 
developed a framework of broad guidelines to be considered in formulating proposals 
for F&Cs.

2.5 A copy of the checklist produced at that time and since updated to maintain currency, 
has been circulated to all Service Directors and to all officers considering F&Cs so 
that a rigorous and consistent approach is taken.  A copy is attached at Appendix 1.

2.6 As in previous years, in order to assist Members, the data on F&Cs has been 
tabulated into a standard format that has been used for Appendices 3 and 4.

Detail and Narrative (Columns A & B)

These give a brief summary of the type of service being provided.

Set by Government (Column C)

This indicates whether a charge is statutory or not. If a charge is statutory then it is 
effectively set by Government and although formal Member approval is still sought, 
there is little or no scope to make changes.

2015/16 Charge Inc VAT (Column D)

The charge has been provided inclusive of VAT for two reasons. First, it shows what 
the customer will actually pay and is therefore more meaningful.

Second, charges for some services, especially those such as car parking, which are 
not simply a direct recovery of costs, are set at a level, inclusive of VAT, based on 



the appropriate market level. The VAT is therefore a deduction from the amount of 
charge retained by DDC and is not a key factor in determining the appropriate 
charge. Members are asked to approve this approach.

2015/16 Total Expected Income ex VAT (Column G)

This gives a broad indication as to how much income DDC is expecting to receive 
and has been included to provide Members with a sense of the relative importance of 
individual charges. 

2016/17 Proposed Charge Inc VAT (Column H)

This is the recommended charge for 2016/17 and will, subject to Members’ approval, 
be included in the 2016/17 budget.

2016/17 Total Expected Income ex VAT (Column J)

This gives a broad indication as to how much income DDC is expected to receive and 
has been included to provide Members with a sense of the relative importance of 
individual charges or group of similar charges. The more significant income streams 
(generating over £3k) have been highlighted in bold type.

In some cases, the level of use is very low, or infrequent, or the service has only 
recently been introduced and so no level of income has been included.

Reason for the Change in Charges (Column L)

This provides Members with a brief explanation for the change.  A full review, 
including detailed breakdown, of all the Licensing fees, charges and accounts is 
currently being undertaken. Unfortunately this work is not yet complete and so cannot 
be used in the fees and charges setting process for 2016-17. However, consideration 
has been given to any deficit or surplus associated with the relevant accounts for the 
last three years with a view to adjusting the fees and charges accordingly. All 
accounts have shown a deficit and so the proposal at this stage is to maintain the 
majority of fees and charges at the current level until such a time as the detailed 
review of the accounts and the fees and charges has been completed.  Some 
changes are proposed however due to amendments to legislation / guidance etc and 
these are summarised in Appendix 2.
In some instances guidance is still awaited from Government as to the basis upon 
which F&Cs should be set. In these cases it has not always been possible to confirm  
a fee level, Member’s approval is sought to enable officers to adopt such fees at or 
close to government directed levels without a further report.

3. Identification of Options

3.1 The recommended figures for consideration by Members are included in the 
Appendices.  Members may approve these proposed figures.

3.2 Members may propose and approve alternative figures with reasons recorded for 
their decisions.



4. Evaluation of Options

4.1 The recommended fees and charges take into account the actual cost of providing 
the service and seek to ensure full cost recovery. This is the recommended approach 
due to the need to maximise income at a time of grant cuts and council tax freezes. 

4.2 Members should also take into account the checklist of issues to consider (at 
Appendix 1) when reviewing the fees and charges included in the subsequent 
Appendices.

5. Resource Implications

See Appendices.

6. Corporate Implications

6.1 Comment from the Director of Finance, Housing and Community (linked to the 
MTFP):  Finance have been involved in the production of this report and have no 
further comment to make. VB

6.2 Comment from the Solicitor to the Council: The Head of Legal Services has been 
consulted in the preparation of this report and has no further comment to make.  

6.3 Comment from the Equalities Officer: This report does not specifically highlight any 
equalities implications however, in discharging their responsibilities members are 
required to comply with the public sector equality duty as set out in section 149 of the 
Equality Act 2010 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15. 

6.4 Other Officers (as appropriate):       

7. Appendices
Appendix 1 –  Fees and Charges checklist
Appendices 3 & 4 –  Schedule of recommended F&Cs
Appendix 6 – Summary of proposed key changes to the licensing fees and charges 

Contact Officers:  Rebecca Pordage, Licensing Team Leader and 
      Victoria Baldwin, Accounting Technician



Fees and Charges 2016/17

Cabinet Appendix 1

Fees and Charges Checklist

Corporate and Service Objectives
Are links made between charges and our corporate and service objectives and are we able to
use charges to help deliver these objectives?

Users of the Service
Is there sufficient understanding of our service users and their needs and wishes?

Have we considered different pricing to specific target groups and has the potential impact of
charges or the changes to existing charges been assessed?

Ensure  that  you consider  the  potential  diversity  and  equality  issues  and where  necessary
consider and document any issues and mitigation.

Comparison with other providers
Is there a complete picture of competition and providers of similar services – including other
Local Authorities?

Consultation
Has the relevant Portfolio holder been consulted  and do charges meet with their aspirations
and requirements?

Is wider community consultation appropriate for any of your charges? Has it been undertaken?

Performance Management
Are the principles for charges clearly defined and are clear targets set and monitored. Do we
have a clear picture of what is a success?

Financial Considerations
Is the charge at a level to fully recover all costs or if is subsidised - why?

Have we considered all services for which we can / should charge a fee?

Are there any fees that we charge, that have not been included in the schedule?

Are we being radical in our approach to charging and are our charges cost effective?

Corporate Income Policy
Please ensure you adhere to the main principals of the Corporate Income Policy when setting
your fees and charges.

Legal Considerations and Other Guidance
Does the Council have the power to levy the charges. Is there any ministerial or other guidance
that should be taken into account?

Customer Access Review
Consider whether the CAR for your service includes any issues for specific fees.



Fees and Charges 2016/17

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

A B C D F H I K L M N

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Detail Narrative
Set by 

Government? Y/N

Approved 

Charges inc 

VAT

Comments
Total Expected 

Income ex VAT

Proposed 

Charges inc 

VAT (where 

applicable)

Comments

Total 

Expected 

Income ex 

VAT

Fee % 

Change
Reasons for Change in Charges and/or Income

Personal Licences Grant or Renewal Y £37 £3,441 £37 £2,960 0%

Personal Licences Change of Name or Address Y £10.50 £178.50 £10.50 £315.00 0%

Personal Licences Theft, Loss etc. Y £10.50 £21 £10.50 £21 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences
Theft, Loss etc. Y £10.50 £10.50 £10.50 £0.00 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences
Change of Name or Address Y £10.50 £21 £10.50 £53 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences
Change of Club Rules Y £10.50 £0 £10.50 £0 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences
Vary DPS Y £23 £1,564 £23 £1,610 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences
Transfer Licence Y £23 £460 £23 £575 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences
Interim Authority Y £23 £0 £23 £0 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences
Notification Interest Y £21 £42 £21 £42 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences
Provisional Statement Y £315 £0 £315 £0 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences
Minor Variation Y £89 £801 £89 £712 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences

New Application & Variation

 NDR Band  A
Y £100 £800 £100 £1,000 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences

New Application & Variation

 NDR Band  B
Y £190 £1,900 £190 £1,900 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences

New Application & Variation

 NDR Band  C
Y £315 £315 £315 £315 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences

New Application & Variation

 NDR Band  D
Y £450 £0 £450 £0 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences

New Application & Variation

 NDR Band   E
Y £635 £1,270 £635 £0 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences

Annual Fee

 NDR Band  A
Y £70 £5,950 £70 £5,110 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences

Annual Fee

 NDR Band  B
Y £180 £50,040 £180 £47,160 0%

Reduction in anticipated income due to premises 

closures.

Premises & Club 

Licences

Annual Fee

 NDR Band  C
Y £295 £10,620 £295 £10,620 0%

Premises & Club 

Licences

Annual Fee

 NDR Band  D
Y £320 £3,200 £320 £1,920 0%

Licensing - D. Randall - D. Croucher - Cllr Collor

Statutory Fee set by 

Government

Statutory Fee set by 

Government

Cabinet Appendix 3.1



Fees and Charges 2016/17

1

2

A B C D F H I K L M N

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Detail Narrative
Set by 

Government? Y/N

Approved 

Charges inc 

VAT

Comments
Total Expected 

Income ex VAT

Proposed 

Charges inc 

VAT (where 

applicable)

Comments

Total 

Expected 

Income ex 

VAT

Fee % 

Change
Reasons for Change in Charges and/or Income

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

Premises & Club 

Licences

Annual Fee

 NDR Band  E
Y £350 £5,250 £350 £7,350 0%

Large Scale Events  

New Application & Variation. Number in 

Attendance at any one time: 5,000 to 

9,999

Y £1,000 £0 £1,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events

New Application & Variation. Number in 

Attendance at any one time: 10,000 to 

14,999

Y £2,000 £0 £2,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events

New Application & Variation. Number in 

Attendance at any one time: 15,000 to 

19,999

Y £4,000 £0 £4,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events

New Application & Variation. Number in 

Attendance at any one time: 20,000 to 

29,999

Y £8,000 £0 £8,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events

New Application & Variation. Number in 

Attendance at any one time: 30,000 to 

39,999

Y £16,000 £0 £16,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events

New Application & Variation. Number in 

Attendance at any one time: 40,000 to 

49,999

Y £24,000 £0 £24,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events

New Application & Variation. Number in 

Attendance at any one time: 50,000 to 

59,999

Y £32,000 £0 £32,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events

New Application & Variation. Number in 

Attendance at any one time: 60,000 to 

69,999

Y £40,000 £0 £40,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events

New Application & Variation. Number in 

Attendance at any one time: 70,000 to 

79,999

Y £48,000 £0 £48,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events

New Application & Variation. Number in 

Attendance at any one time: 80,000 to 

89,999

Y £56,000 £0 £56,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events

New Application & Variation. Number in 

Attendance at any one time: 90,000 and 

over

Y £64,000 £0 £64,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events
Annual Fee

 5,000 to 9,999
Y £500 £0 £500 £0 0%

Large Scale Events
Annual Fee

 10,000 to 14,999
Y £1,000 £0 £1,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events
Annual Fee

 15,000 to 19,999
Y £2,000 £0 £2,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events
Annual Fee

 20,000 to 29,999
Y £4,000 £0 £4,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events
Annual Fee

30,000 to 39,999
Y £8,000 £0 £8,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events
Annual Fee

40,000 to 49,999
Y £12,000 £0 £12,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events
Annual Fee

 50,000 to 59,999
Y £16,000 £0 £16,000 £0 0%

Statutory Fee set by 

Government

Statutory Fee set by 

Government

Cabinet Appendix 3.1



Fees and Charges 2016/17

1

2

A B C D F H I K L M N

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Detail Narrative
Set by 

Government? Y/N

Approved 

Charges inc 

VAT

Comments
Total Expected 

Income ex VAT

Proposed 

Charges inc 

VAT (where 

applicable)

Comments

Total 

Expected 

Income ex 

VAT

Fee % 

Change
Reasons for Change in Charges and/or Income

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

Large Scale Events
Annual Fee

 60,000 to 69,999
Y £20,000 £0 £20,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events
Annual Fee

 70,000 to 79,999
Y £24,000 £0 £24,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events
Annual Fee

80,000 to 89,999
Y £28,000 £0 £28,000 £0 0%

Large Scale Events
Annual fee

90,000 and over
Y £32,000 £0 £32,000 £0 0%

Temporary Event 

Notices
New Notice Y £21 £3,990 £21 £4,200 0%

Temporary Event 

Notices
Theft, Loss etc. Y £10.50 £10.50 £10.50 £0.00 0%

Small Society Lotteries Registration Fee Y £40 £840 £40 £600 0%

Small Society Lotteries Annual Fee Y £20 £1,960 £20 £1,500 0%

Statutory Fee set by 

Government

Statutory Fee set by 

Government

Cabinet Appendix 3.1



Fees and Charges 2016/17

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

A B C D F H I K L M N

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Detail Narrative
Set by 

Government? Y/N

Approved 

Charges inc 

VAT

Comments

Total Expected 

Income inc 

VAT

Proposed 

Charges inc 

VAT (where 

applicable)

Comments

Total Expected 

Income inc 

VAT

Fee % 

Change
Reasons for Change in Charges and/or Income

Bingo Club Licence Application N £3,500 £0 £3,500 £0 0%

Bingo Club Annual Fee N £950 £1,900 £950 £1,900 0%

Bingo Club Application to Vary N £1,750 £0 £1,750 £0 0%

Bingo Club Application to Transfer N £1,200 £0 £1,200 £0 0%

Bingo Club Application for Reinstatement N £1,200 £0 £1,200 £0 0%

Bingo Club Application for Provisional Statement N £3,500 £0 £3,500 £0 0%

Bingo Club
Licence Application

 (Provisional Statement Holders)
N £1,200 £0 £1,200 £0 0%

Bingo Club Copy of Licence N £25 £0 £25 £0 0%

Bingo Club Notification of Change N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Betting Premise

 (excluding Tracks)
Licence Application N £3,000 £0 £3,000 £0 0%

Betting Premise

 (excluding Tracks)
Annual Fee N £575 £7,475 £575 £5,750 0% Reduced income due to premises closures

Betting Premise

 (excluding Tracks)
Application to Vary N £1,250 £0 £1,250 £0 0%

Betting Premise

 (excluding Tracks)
Application to Transfer N £1,200 £0 £1,200 £0 0%

Betting Premise

 (excluding Tracks)
Application for Reinstatement N £1,200 £0 £1,200 £0 0%

Betting Premise

 (excluding Tracks)
Application for Provisional Statement N £3,000 £0 £3,000 £0 0%

Betting Premise

 (excluding Tracks)

Licence Application

 (Provisional Statement Holders)
N £1,200 £0 £1,200 £0 0%

Betting Premise

 (excluding Tracks)
Copy of Licence N £25 £0 £25 £0 0%

Betting Premise

 (excluding Tracks)
Notification of Change N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Track Licence Application N £2,500 £0 £2,500 £0 0%

Track Annual Fee N £950 £0 £950 £0 0%

Track Application to Vary N £1,250 £0 £1,250 £0 0%

Track Application to Transfer N £950 £0 £950 £0 0%

Track Application for Reinstatement N £950 £0 £950 £0 0%

Track Application for Provisional Statement N £2,500 £0 £2,500 £0 0%

Track
Licence Application

 (Provisional Statement Holders)
N £950 £0 £950 £0 0%

Track Copy of Licence N £25 £0 £25 £0 0%

Track Notification of Change N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Family Entertainment 

Centre
Licence Application N £2,000 £0 £2,000 £0 0%

Licensing - D. Randall - D. Croucher - Cllr Collor

Cabinet Appendix 3.2



Fees and Charges 2016/17

1

2

A B C D F H I K L M N

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Detail Narrative
Set by 

Government? Y/N

Approved 

Charges inc 

VAT

Comments

Total Expected 

Income inc 

VAT

Proposed 

Charges inc 

VAT (where 

applicable)

Comments

Total Expected 

Income inc 

VAT

Fee % 

Change
Reasons for Change in Charges and/or Income

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

Family Entertainment 

Centre
Annual Fee N £725 £2,175 £725 £2,175 0%

Family Entertainment 

Centre
Application to Vary N £1,000 £0 £1,000 £0 0%

Family Entertainment 

Centre
Application to Transfer N £950 £0 £950 £0 0%

Family Entertainment 

Centre
Application for Reinstatement N £950 £0 £950 £0 0%

Family Entertainment 

Centre
Application for Provisional Statement N £2,000 £0 £2,000 £0 0%

Family Entertainment 

Centre

Licence Application

 (Provisional Statement Holders)
N £950 £0 £950 £0 0%

Family Entertainment 

Centre
Copy of Licence N £25 £0 £25 £0 0%

Family Entertainment 

Centre
Notification of Change N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Adult Gaming Centre Licence Application N £2,000 £0 £2,000 £0 0%

Adult Gaming Centre Annual Fee N £950 £8,550 £950 £3,800 0% Reduced income due to legislative changes

Adult Gaming Centre Application to Vary N £1,000 £0 £1,000 £0 0%

Adult Gaming Centre Application to Transfer N £1,200 £0 £1,200 £0 0%

Adult Gaming Centre Application for Reinstatement N £1,200 £0 £1,200 £0 0%

Adult Gaming Centre Application for Provisional Statement N £2,000 £0 £2,000 £0 0%

Adult Gaming Centre
Licence Application

 (Provisional Statement Holders)
N £1,200 £0 £1,200 £0 0%

Adult Gaming Centre Copy of Licence N £25 £0 £25 £0 0%

Adult Gaming Centre Notification of Change N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

New Small Casino Licence Application N £8,000 £0 £8,000 £0 0%

New Small Casino Annual Fee N £5,000 £0 £5,000 £0 0%

New Small Casino Application to Vary N £4,000 £0 £4,000 £0 0%

New Small Casino Application to Transfer N £1,800 £0 £1,800 £0 0%

New Small Casino Application for Reinstatement N £1,800 £0 £1,800 £0 0%

New Small Casino Application for Provisional Statement N £8,000 £0 £8,000 £0 0%

New Small Casino
Licence Application

 (Provisional Statement Holders)
N £3,000 £0 £3,000 £0 0%

New Small Casino Copy of Licence N £25 £0 £25 £0 0%

New Small Casino Notification of Change N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

New Large Casino Licence Application N £10,000 £0 £10,000 £0 0%

New Large Casino Annual Fee N £10,000 £0 £10,000 £0 0%

New Large Casino Application to Vary N £5,000 £0 £5,000 £0 0%

New Large Casino Application to Transfer N £2,150 £0 £2,150 £0 0%

Cabinet Appendix 3.2



Fees and Charges 2016/17

1

2

A B C D F H I K L M N

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Detail Narrative
Set by 

Government? Y/N

Approved 

Charges inc 

VAT

Comments

Total Expected 

Income inc 

VAT

Proposed 

Charges inc 

VAT (where 

applicable)

Comments

Total Expected 

Income inc 

VAT

Fee % 

Change
Reasons for Change in Charges and/or Income

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

New Large Casino Application for Reinstatement N £2,150 £0 £2,150 £0 0%

New Large Casino Application for Provisional Statement N £10,000 £0 £10,000 £0 0%

New Large Casino
Licence Application

 (Provisional Statement Holders)
N £5,000 £0 £5,000 £0 0%

New Large Casino Copy of Licence N £25 £0 £25 £0 0%

New Large Casino Notification of Change N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Regional Casino Licence Application N £15,000 £0 £15,000 £0 0%

Regional Casino Annual Fee N £15,000 £0 £15,000 £0 0%

Regional Casino Application to Vary N £7,500 £0 £7,500 £0 0%

Regional Casino Application to Transfer N £6,500 £0 £6,500 £0 0%

Regional Casino Application for Reinstatement N £6,500 £0 £6,500 £0 0%

Regional Casino Application for Provisional Statement N £15,000 £0 £15,000 £0 0%

Regional Casino
Licence Application

 (Provisional Statement Holders)
N £8,000 £0 £8,000 £0 0%

Regional Casino Copy of Licence N £25 £0 £25 £0 0%

Regional Casino Notification of Change N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Temporary Use Notice Application Fee Y £500 £0 £500 £0 0%

Alcohol Licences 

Premises

Permit Application Fee

 (2 or less Machines)
Y £50 £100 £50 £100 0%

Alcohol Licences 

Premises

Permit Application Fee

 (3+ Machines)
Y £150 £0 £150 £0 0%

Alcohol Licences 

Premises

Permit Annual Fee

 (3+ Machines)
Y £50 £150 £50 £150 0%

Alcohol Licences 

Premises

Permit Transitional Application Fee

 (3+ Machines)
Y £100 £0 N/A £0 0% No Longer Relevant

Family Entertainment 

Centre Unlicensed
Permit Application Fee Y £300 £0 £300 £0 0%

Family Entertainment 

Centre Unlicensed
Permit Renewal Fee Y £300 £3,300 £300 £0 0%

Permits last for a period of 10 years. Renewals not 

due until 2017

Family Entertainment 

Centre Gaming 

Machine

Permit Transitional Application Fee Y £100 £0 N/A £0 0% No Longer Relevant

Prize Gaming Permit Application Fee Y £300 £0 £300 £0 0%

Prize Gaming Permit Renewal Fee Y £300 £0 £300 £0 0%

Prize Gaming Permit Transitional Application Fee Y £100 £0 N/A £0 0% No Longer Relevant

Cabinet Appendix 3.2



Fees and Charges 2016/17

1

2

A B C D F H I K L M N

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Detail Narrative
Set by 

Government? Y/N

Approved 

Charges inc 

VAT

Comments

Total Expected 

Income inc 

VAT

Proposed 

Charges inc 

VAT (where 

applicable)

Comments

Total Expected 

Income inc 

VAT

Fee % 

Change
Reasons for Change in Charges and/or Income

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

Club Gaming Permit Application Fee Y £200 £0 £200 £0 0%

Club Gaming Permit Annual Fee Y £50 £100 £50 £100 0%

Club Gaming
Permit Renewal Fee

 (due every 10 years)
Y £200 £0 £200 £0 0%

Club Gaming Permit Transitional Application Fee Y £100 £0 N/A £0 0% No Longer Relevant

Club Gaming  Machine Permit Application Fee Y £200 £0 £200 £0 0%

Club Gaming  Machine Permit Annual Fee Y £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Club Gaming  Machine Permit Renewal Fee Y £200 £0 £200 £0 0%

Club Gaming  Machine Permit Transitional Application Fee Y £100 £0 N/A £0 0% No Longer Relevant

Club Fast-track for 

Gaming  Permit or 

Gaming  Machine 

Permit

Permit Application Fee Y £100 £0 £100 £0 0%

Club Fast-track for 

Gaming  Permit or 

Gaming  Machine 

Permit

Permit Annual Fee Y £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Club Fast-track for 

Gaming  Permit or 

Gaming  Machine 

Permit

Permit Renewal Fee Y £200 £0 N/A £0 0%

Gaming Machine 

Permit 
Annual Fee Y £50 £100 £100 £100 100%

Provision of Gambling Copy Licence Y £25 £0 £0 £0 -100%

Provision of Gambling Notification of Change Y £50 £0 £0 £0 -100%

Cabinet Appendix 3.2



Fees and Charges 2016/17

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

A B C D F H I K L M N

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Detail Narrative
Set by 

Government? Y/N

Approved 

Charges inc 

VAT

Comments

Total 

Expected 

Income ex 

VAT

Proposed 

Charges inc 

VAT (where 

applicable)

Comments
Total Expected 

Income ex VAT

Fee % 

Change
Reasons for Change in Charges and/or Income

Acupuncture Premise Registration N £175 £175 £175 £175 0%

Acupuncture Additional Practitioner N £80 £160 £80 £160 0%

Acupuncture Minor Variation N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Cosmetic Piercing Premise Registration N £175 £0 £175 £0 0%

Cosmetic Piercing Additional Practitioner N £80 £80 £80 £160 0%

Cosmetic Piercing Minor Variation N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Ear Piercing Premise Registration N £175 £0 £175 £0 0%

Ear Piercing Additional Practitioner N £80 £80 £80 £160 0%

Ear Piercing Minor Variation N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Electrolysis Premise Registration N £175 £0 £175 £0 0%

Electrolysis Additional Practitioner N £80 £0 £80 £0 0%

Electrolysis Minor Variation N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Semi-permanent Skin-

colouring
Premise Registration N £175 £0 £175 £0 0%

Semi-permanent Skin-

colouring
Additional Practitioner N £80 £80 £80 £80 0%

Semi-permanent Skin-

colouring
Minor Variation N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Tattooing Premise Registration N £175 £175 £175 £0 0%

Tattooing Additional Practitioner N £80 £160 £80 £80 0%

Tattooing Minor Variation N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Animal Licensing Boarding Establishments N £235 plus vet fees (initial visit) £3,525 £235 £3,525 0%

Animal Licensing Home Boarding N N/A plus vet fees (initial visit) £0 £120

Plus vet fees (initial visit). 

Boarding within Domestic 

Premises.

£120
New fee to cater for up and coming business type 

(Within Domestic Premises)

Animal Licensing Dog Breeding Establishments N £235 plus Vet fees £705 £235 £470 0%

Animal Licensing Dangerous Wild Animals N £235 plus Vet fees £235 £235 £470 0%

Animal Licensing Performing Animals N £235 plus Vet fees £0 £235 £0 0%

Animal Licensing Pet Shops N £170 plus vet fees (initial visit) £1,190 £170 £1,020 0%

Animal Licensing Horse Riding Establishments N £235 plus Vet fees £1,645 £235 £1,470 0%

Animal Licensing Zoos N £750 plus Vet fees £0 £750 £750 0%

Licensing - D. Randall - D. Croucher - Cllr Collor

Cabinet Appendix 4.1



Fees and Charges 2016/17

1

2

A B C D F H I K L M N

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Detail Narrative
Set by 

Government? Y/N

Approved 

Charges inc 

VAT

Comments

Total 

Expected 

Income ex 

VAT

Proposed 

Charges inc 

VAT (where 

applicable)

Comments
Total Expected 

Income ex VAT

Fee % 

Change
Reasons for Change in Charges and/or Income

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

Street Trading Consent Grant N £490 £1,470 £490

£295 Non refundable to be 

submitted with application, a 

further £195 is due if application is 

approved to cover regulation.

£980 0%

The fee has been split to cover the authorisation 

procedure (£295 non-refundable) with a further £195 

due to cover regulation and enforcement once a 

consent has been approved. 

Street Trading Consent Annual renewal N £490 £0 £230 £920 -53%

Street Trading Consent Occasional N £130 £0 £130 £0 0%

Street Trading Consent Occasional Street Market N £200
up to 25 stalls then £10 per stall 

thereafter
£1,200 £200

up to 25 stalls then £10 per stall 

thereafter
£1,000 0%

Street Trading Consent
Pavement Permit (New) - Tables & 

Chairs
N £75 New & Variation Applications £225 £75 New & Variation Applications £150 0%

Street Trading Consent
Pavement Permit (Renewal) - Tables & 

Chairs
N £35  Renewal £1,050 £35  Renewal £980 0%

Sexual Entertainment 

Venue
Grant N £3,250 £0 £3,250 £0 0%

Sexual Entertainment 

Venue
Renewal, Transfer or Variation N £2,225 £0 £2,225 £0 0%

Boat Licence Grant N £93 £0 £93 £0 0%

Boat Licence Renewal or Transfer N £93 £279 £93 £279 0%

Hypnotism 

Performance
Grant N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Scrap Metal Dealer Site Licence Grant N £470 £0 £470 £0 0%

Scrap Metal Dealer Site Licence Variation N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Scrap Metal Dealer Site Licence Renewal N £450 £4,050 £450 £3,600 0%

Scrap Metal Dealer Collectors Licence Grant N £275 £0 £275 £0 0%

Scrap Metal Dealer Collectors Licence Variation N £50 £0 £50 £0 0%

Scrap Metal Dealer Collectors Licence Renewal N £255 £1,275 £255 £1,785 0%

Cabinet Appendix 4.1



Fees and Charges 2016/17

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

A B C D E G H J K L M

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Detail Narrative
Set by 

Government? Y/N

Approved 

Charges inc 

VAT

Comments
Total Expected 

Income ex VAT

Proposed 

Charges inc 

VAT (where 

applicable)

Comments
Total Expected 

Income ex VAT
% Change Reasons for Change in Charges and/or Income

Hackney Carriage & 

Private Hire

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Annual 

Licence

 (Grant and Renewal)

N £315
If vehicle is wheelchair accessible 

there is a £100 reduction in fee
£375

If vehicle is wheelchair accessible 

there is a £100 reduction in fee
£25,875 19%

Fee incorporates Unmet Demand Survey which was 

previously charged separately.

Hackney Carriage & 

Private Hire

Private Hire Vehicle Annual Licence

 (Grant and Renewal)
N £315

If vehicle is wheelchair accessible 

there is a £100 reduction in fee
£315

No part of this fee is refundable in 

the event that the application is not 

approved or the vehicle is 

delicensed for any reason during 

the licence period. If vehicle is 

wheelchair accessible there is a 

£100 reduction in fee.

£34,650 0%

Hackney Carriage & 

Private Hire
Unmet Demand Survey N £60 £4,200 £0 £0 -100% Incorporated in HC Vehicle Renewal fee

Hackney Carriage & 

Private Hire

Licence Transfer Following Change of 

Vehicle 
N £50 No discount applicable £1,900 £50 £3,000 0%

Hackney Carriage & 

Private Hire
Change of Vehicle ownership N £20 New administrative Fee £100 £20 £40 0%

Hackney Carriage & 

Private Hire

Joint Hackney Carriage Private Hire 

Driver: 1 year
N £85 £25,160 £90.75

No part of this fee is refundable in 

the event that the application is not 

approved or the driver is 

delicensed for any reason during 

the Licence period.

7%

Fee now incorporates DVLA Mandate fee 

(previously separate charge). Reduction in income 

anticipated in future years due to introduction of new 

3 year licence in accordance with legislative 

changes)

Hackney Carriage & 

Private Hire

Joint Hackney Carriage Private Hire 

Driver: 3 year
N £0 £0 £187.25

Fee is broken down to include £85 

for year 1, £42.50 for year 2, 

£42.50 for year 3 plus 3 x £5.75 

annual DVLA Mandate). The first 

year (£90.75) is non refundable in 

the event that the application is not 

approved or the driver is 

delicensed for any reason during 

the Licence period. Any further 

refunds will be dealt with on a 

case by case basis.

N/A
New 3 year License due to changes to legislation 

(Deregulation 2015)  

Hackney Carriage & 

Private Hire

DBS Disclosure

 (formerly CRB)
N £44

Fee set externally. New drivers + 

every 3 years for renewals
£4,400 £44

Fee set externally. New drivers + 

every 3 years for renewals
£4,840 0%

Hackney Carriage & 

Private Hire
Knowledge Test N £26 new drivers £390 £26 new drivers £234 0%

Hackney Carriage & 

Private Hire
Vehicle Plate N £19 per plate £560 £19 per plate £532 0%

Hackney Carriage & 

Private Hire
Vehicle Plate holder N £16 per holder £320 £12 per holder £108 -25%

Private Hire Operator
Operators Licence for PH Vehicles Only 

 (not Hackney) (1 year Licence)
N £55 per vehicle (Licence lasts 1 year) £6,655

£15 Plus 

£40 per vehicle

1 year licence only available in 

exceptional circumstances. No 

part of this fee is refundable in the 

event that the application is not 

approved, or the number of 

vehicles is reduced or the operator 

is delicensed for any reason during 

the Licence period. 

£0 0%

Standard licence is now a 5 year licence - 1 year 

licences will only be issued in exceptional 

circumstances on a case by case basis

Licensing - D. Randall - D. Croucher - Cllr Collor

£57,645

£30,000

Cabinet Appendix 4.2



Fees and Charges 2016/17

2

3

A B C D E G H J K L M

2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17

Detail Narrative
Set by 

Government? Y/N

Approved 

Charges inc 

VAT

Comments
Total Expected 

Income ex VAT

Proposed 

Charges inc 

VAT (where 

applicable)

Comments
Total Expected 

Income ex VAT
% Change Reasons for Change in Charges and/or Income

17

Private Hire Operator
Operators Licence for PH Vehicles Only

 (not Hackney) (Licence lasts 5 years) 
N N/A

£75 Plus 

£200 per 

vehicle

Licence lasts 5 years. NB 

additional vehicles will be charged 

at a rate of £40 per full and partial 

years remaining of the Licence 

period. The first year (£15 plus £40 

per vehicle) is non refundable in 

any event. Refunds will be 

considered in subsequent years if 

the licenced is surrendered or 

revoked during the period of the 

licence.

£24,500 N/A
New 5 year License due to changes to legislation 

(Deregulation 2015)  

Cabinet Appendix 4.2



Appendix 6: 

Summary of proposed key changes to the licensing fees and charges

It is proposed that the following changes to the existing fees and charges structure are adopted:

Appendix 3 Gambling
 
•             Removal of all Permit Transitional Application fees as they are no longer relevant.
 
Appendix 4 Miscellaneous Licensing
 
• Addition of a new Home Boarding Fee of £120 plus Vets Fees (initial visit) under the Animal 

Licensing category. It is proposed that this fee be introduced to cater for an up and coming 
business type – namely Boarding within domestic premises.

• Street Trading Consent Grant and Annual renewal are to be separated.
• The proposed fee for Street Trading Consent Grant is to remain the same at £490. However, 

it is proposed that this fee be split with a £295 non-refundable element being payable upon 
application to cover the authorisation procedure, with a further £195 due if the application 
is approved to cover regulation and enforcement. 

• The proposed fee for Street Trading Consent Annual renewal is £230 as opposed to £490 to 
reflect the reduction in administrative duties related to renewal as opposed to grant.  

Appendix 4 Hackney Carriage / Private Hire
 
• Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Annual Licence are separated. 
• The Vehicle Annual Licence (Grant and Renewal) for Hackney Carriages is increased from 

£315 to £375 but now includes the Unmet Demand Survey contribution of £60 which was 
previously charged for separately. This is in accordance with relevant guidance.

• The Private Hire Vehicle Annual Licence (Grant and Renewal) remains the same at £315 but 
is no longer refundable if the application is refused or for any other reason. The justification 
for this is that the majority of the fee relates to the cost of administering the authorisation 
process (including arranging hearings where necessary).  

• Unmet demand Survey fee is to be removed as this is now incorporated within the Hackney 
Carriage Annual Licence fee.

• Due to the Deregulation Act 2015 Licensing Authorities are now required to establish a 
standard duration of 3 years for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences. However, 
it has been specified that a licence may be granted for a period of less than 3 years but only 
in the circumstances of an individual case. Therefore it is proposed that a fee of £187.25 be 
applied for a 3 year Joint Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Driver Licence. This fee is broken 
down to include £85 for year 1 (as existing), £42.50 for year 2, £42.50 for year 3 plus 3 times 
£5.75 to cover the annual DVLA mandate fee. The reduced rate for years 2 and 3 reflects the 
fact that the administrative duties will be lower in these periods. 

• With regards to the 3 years for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences it is also 
proposed that the first year (£90.75) is non refundable in the event that the application is 
not approved or the driver is de-licensed for any reason during the Licence period. Any 
further refunds will be dealt with on a case by case basis.

• The 1 year Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver Licences is increased from £85 to £90.75 
but now includes the Annual DVLA Mandate Fee of £5.75  which was previously charged for 
separately. No part of this fee is refundable in any circumstance.  The justification for this is 
that the majority of the fee relates to the cost of administering the authorisation process 
(including arranging hearings where necessary).  



• Vehicle Plate Holder fee is reduced from £16 to £12 to reflect actual costs.
• Due to the Deregulation Act 2015 Licensing Authorities are now required to establish a 

standard duration of 5 years for a Private Hire Operator Licence. However, it has been 
specified that a licence may be granted for a period of less than 5 years but only in the 
circumstances of an individual case. Therefore it is proposed that a fee of £15 plus £40 per 
vehicle is applied for a 1 year licence. No part of this fee is refundable in the event that the 
application is not approved or any other circumstances. 

• The proposed fee for the 5 year Private Hire Operator Licence is £75 plus £200 per vehicle. 
This is simply 5 x the annual fee as the costs in administering and regulating the licence will 
not alter significantly from year to year. Additional vehicles added during the period of the 
Licence will be charged at a rate of £40 per full and partial years remaining of the Licence 
period. The first year (£15 plus £40 per vehicle) is non-refundable in any event. Refunds will 
be considered in subsequent years if the licence is surrendered or revoked during the period 
of the licence.

 
 



DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL

REGULATORY COMMITTEE – 1 DECEMBER 2015

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Recommendation

That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the remainder of the business on the grounds that the 
items to be considered involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in the paragraph of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act set out below:

Item Report Paragraph 
Exempt

Reason

No 14 - Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 – Joint Driver’s Licence

1 Information relating to any 
individual.






	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 18/08/2015 Regulatory Committee
	Minutes


	 PROCEDURE FOR HEARING
	Procedure for Hearings Before Committee

	5 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 - Application to Licence a Vehicle Outside of Policy Guidelines
	Relyon - Appendix A

	6 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 - Application for Street Trading Consent, Deal Seafront
	Will's Catering - Appendix A
	Street Trading Consent Streets
	Deal
	Dover
	Sandwich


	Will's Catering - Appendix B
	Will's Catering - Appendix C
	Will's Catering - Appendix D

	7 Highways Act 1980 - Section 115E - Bloody Mary's, 160-162 High Street, Deal
	Bloody Mary's map
	Bloody Mary's - Appendix A
	Bloody Mary's - Appendix B
	Bloody Mary's - Appendix C
	Bloody Mary's - Appendix D

	8 Highways Act 1980 - Section 115E - Route 1 (Deal) Ltd, Beach Street, Deal
	Route 1 map
	Route 1- Appendix A
	Route 1- Appendix B
	Route 1- Appendix C
	Route 1 - Appendix D

	9 Highways Act 1980 - Section 115E - The Clarendon Hotel, 51-53 Beach Street, Deal
	The Clarendon Hotel - map
	The Clarendon Hotel - Appendix A
	The Clarendon Hotel - Appendix B
	The Clarendon Hotel - Appendix C
	The Clarendon Hotel - Appendix D

	10 Highways Act 1980 - Section 115E - The Duchess, 1 Bench Street, Dover
	The Duchess map
	The Duchess - Appendix A
	The Duchess - Appendix B
	The Duchess - Appendix C
	The Duchess - Appendix D

	11 Highways Act 1980 - Section 115E - The Seagull, 33 High Street, Deal
	Seagull map
	The Seagull - Appendix A
	The Seagull - Appendix B
	The Seagull - Appendix C
	The Seagull - Appendix D
	Sent: 25 September 2015 12:26 To: Katy Sharp  Subject: RE: Urgent Response Required - Dover District Street Furniture Applications

	The Seagull - Appendix D image

	12 Fees and Charges 2016/17
	Copy of Appendix 1
	Fees and Charges Appendix 3
	Fees and Charges Appendix 4
	Appendix 6 Licensing Fees and Charges 2016-17

	13 Exclusion of the Press and Public
	14 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 - Joint Driver's Licence
	Joint Driver's Licence - Appendix A




